TOWN OF DUCK
TOWN COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING
September 1, 2021

The Town Council for the Town of Duck convened at the Paul F. Keller Meeting Hall at
6:00 p.m. on Wednesday, September 1, 2021.

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Don Kingston; Mayor Pro Tempore Monica
Thibodeau; Councilor Nancy Caviness; Councilor Sandy Whitman; and Councilor Rob
Mooney.

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: None.

OTHERS PRESENT: Town Manager Drew Havens, Director of Community
Development Joseph Heard; Police Lieutenant Melissa Clark; Fire Chief Donna Black;
Town Attorney Robert Hobbs; Director of Marketing and Special Events Christian
Legner; Public Relations Administrative Assistant Betsy Trimble; Finance and Human
Resources Administrator Jessica Barnes; Senior Planner Sandy Cross; and Deputy Town
Clerk Kristiana Nickens.

OTHERS ABSENT: Police Chief Jeffrey Ackerman and Town Clerk Lori Ackerman.
Mayor Kingston called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

Mayor Kingston asked Fire Captain Jacob Dempsey to lead the Pledge of Allegiance.
Mayor Kingston led the moment of silence.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Mayor Kingston opened the floor for public comments. He noted that comments will be
limited to three minutes as there was now a timer for the time limit. He added that the
public could email public comments, but they must be received by 4:00 p.m. on the day
of the Council meeting. He noted that written comments must also be limited to three
minutes when read aloud. He asked that all comments regarding the public hearings be
held off at this time.

Director of Marketing and Special Events Christian Legner was recognized to speak.
Director Legner went on to read the public comments that had been received.

John Park of 109 Waxwing Lane, Stephen Theuer of 109 Royal Tern Lane, Kevin &
Mariam Robertson of 117 Waxwing Lane, Tim & Laurie Rose of 101 Vireo Way, David
Riden of 116 Waxwing Lane, Jane Dowrick of 102 Blue Heron Lane, A.J. Johnson of
111 Royal Tern Lane, Nancy & Thomas Goodrich of 105 Royal Tern Lane, Kristin
Rountree of 121 Waxwing Lane, Lex Wolf of 103 Gannet Cove, Karen Thomas of 116
Waxwing Lane, Jim O’Neill of 107 Royal Tern Lane, Robert Harris of 115 Waxwing



Lane, Joel & Marcia Wilson of 104 Station Bay Drive, Kevin & Kathleen Wright of 112
Quail Way, Bob & Margie Farmer of 102 Ruddy Duck Lane, Tony & Nancy Parisi of
1540 Duck Road, David Smitley of 115 Royal Tern Lane, Jack Moreland of 108 Royal
Tern Lane, Donna & David Gearhart of 114 Blue Heron Lane, Sandra Hughes Harrison
of 102 Waxwing Court, Melanie Sterling of 102 Blue Heron Lane, Ray Falcione of 110
Gannet Lane, Heidi Gillis of 119 Vireo Way, Jay Blose of 105 Waxwing Court, and
Richard Erb of 113 Waxwing Lane were all recognized to speak. The individuals wrote
the following: “Town of Duck Council Members, I am writing as a property owner in
Duck to ask that the Council terminate the current test of the blue route/yellow route trash
service and reinstate the previous schedule of Monday and Friday service that aligns
recycle service with trash service for the entire Town. All the residents and property
owners in Duck deserve the same excellent service, whether it be for trash, recycling or
any other service provided by the Town of Duck and paid for with taxpayer dollars. The
entire program has been disingenuous from the start. The survey supporting the trial
schedule failed to amplify the fact that the trash and recycle services would not be the
same, which led to inaccurate results. Information about the test schedule did not include
any mention of recycle services and that half the Town would have receptacles out three
days a week while the other half would have them out two days as in the past. Further,
the “trial” was supposed to be a “summer” program, but when the Town made the post-
survey announcement, it included changes to the off-season schedule as well. The
decision to give the yellow route (north) the new schedule has created a mess on heavily
traveled Duck Road. The fact that traffic has to deal with slow downs for trash and
recycle vehicles three days each week instead of two made the decision insensitive to
existent traffic problems in Duck. There are more than 80 properties with receptacles on
the road five days a week, with roll out on one day and roll back on another, creating a
mess on Duck Road. It is time to return to a synchronized trash/recycle schedule that is
(1) focused on excellent service for the entire property owner population, (2) reduces
traffic congestion in Duck, and (3) reduces the mess on Duck Road. Surely with a $3M
budget increase, the Town of Duck can afford to dictate the terms of service to the trash
vendor rather than the other way around.”

William Pilat of 115 Vireo Way was recognized to speak. Mr. Pilat wrote the following:
“Dear Duck Council Members, Thank you for your service to the Town of Duck. I am
writing to say as a property owner in Duck, the trash collection system used this past
summer was not successful. There were trash cans on the street more days than they
were off the street. Obviously creating mess, eyesore, traffic congestion and a poor
impression for our visitors and renters. Please fix this problem and go back to the way
things were before. Thank you.”

Richard & Ellen Enderley of 125 Martin Lane were recognized to speak. Mr. & Mirs.
Enderley wrote the following: “Members of Duck Town Council; we are writing to urge
you to restore the Monday/Friday trash collection service to align with the recycling
collection schedule — for the ENTIRE Town of Duck. Please end the current blue/yellow
“trial”. In effect, the trial schedule this summer penalized the northernmost portion of the
Duck population. For starters, our unsightly trash/recycling bins sat on our road at least
five days per week to accommodate the un-aligned schedules. Even worse, the traffic to



the center of Duck continued to be magnified on the ADDITIONAL collection
weekday(s); frequently it took more than 40 minutes to travel from the Sanderling Inn to
the center of Duck, as drivers were essentially trapped behind collection trucks in the
flow of traffic. Combined with the already horrendous summer weekend traffic and the
already existing collection backups, this was infuriating. Is there a legitimate reason why
the weekday trash/recycling schedules cannot be realigned — perhaps by starting the
morning collection process in the northernmost areas of Duck and then proceeding south?
In short, an unintended consequence of the trial has been to discriminate between the
level of services experienced by Duck taxpayers north and south of the research pier. It’s
unacceptable. Surely with the recent increase in the Town of Duck budget, there’s a way
that ALL Duck taxpayers can expect to receive the same excellent level of services —
whether it’s Police/Fire or efficient trash/recycling collection. The restoration of the
synchronized trash/recycling schedule appears to be a solvable problem and we ask that
you address it. Thank you for your thoughtful consideration of this issue.”

Lou Fedele of 1532 Duck Road was recognized to speak. Mr. Fedele wrote the following:
“Town of Duck Council Members, 1 am writing as a property owner and full-time
resident in Duck to ask that the Council terminate the current test of the blue route/yellow
route trash service and reinstate the previous schedule of Monday and Friday service that
aligns recycle service with trash service for the entire Town. I supported the trial when it
was initially proposed. I believe potential solutions should be explored when problems
arise. However, there are two unfavorable consequences I've observed with the changes.
One is the additional traffic congestion on Duck Road created with an additional day of
collection. The second and more significant is the time full trash cans are left out on the
road. Often over full and open trash cans remain in front of vacant rental properties from
Sundays to Tuesdays. On the old schedule cans were left out, at most overnight. This
new schedule has the potential of exacerbating an ever-growing rodent problem here in
the north end of the Town. This is a health concern. I hope you will take these concerns
into consideration before making any permanent schedule changes.”

There being no one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kingston closed the time for public
comments.

CONSENT AGENDA

Minutes from the July 7, 2021, Regular Meeting; Budget Amendments; Contract
with VHB

Councilor Whitman moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.
Motion carried 5-0.

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

Introduction of New Employees and Promotion



Jessica Barnes, Finance and Human Resources Administrator

Town Manager Drew Havens was recognized to speak. Town Manager Havens went on
to introduce the Town’s Finance and Human Resources Administrator — Jessica Barnes to
Council and the audience.

Mayor Kingston and Council welcomed Jessica Barnes to the Town.

David Sybert, Firefighter; Erin Thomas, Firefighter; Gregory Fiala, Firefighter;
Promotion of Fire Captain Jacob Dempsey

Fire Chief Donna Black was recognized to speak. Fire Chief Black introduced Fire
Captain Jacob Dempsey to Council and the audience as the Fire Department’s newest
Fire Captain.

Fire Chief Black went on to introduce the Fire Department’s newest firefighters — David
Sybert, Erin Thomas and Gregory Fiala to Council and the audience.

Mayor Kingston and Council welcomed David Sybert, Erin Thomas and Gregory Fiala to
the Town.

N.C. Coastal Federation Pelican Award
Director of Marketing and Special Events Christian Legner and Senior Planner Sandy
Cross were recognized to speak. Director Legner and Senior Planner Cross went on to

give a short presentation on the North Carolina Coastal Federation Pelican award that the
Town recently received to Council and the audience.

NFIP Community Rating System Improvement to Class 6 Rating

Senior Planner Cross gave a short presentation on the Town’s NFIP Community Rating
System improvement to a Class 6 rating to Council and the audience.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Public Hearing/Discussion/Consideration of SE21-001, an_Application by Golden
Sand _Holdings, LLC, for a Special Exception Seeking a Modification of One
Parking Space to the Minimum Parking Standards Under the Village Commercial
Development Option Relating to the Establishment of a One-Bedroom Apartment

Above the Existing Retail Shop in Unit 7 of the Soundside Shoppes at 1180 Duck
Road

Mayor Kingston turned the meeting over to Town Attorney Robert Hobbs.

Town Attorney Hobbs stated that this was an unusunal public hearing because Council
already held a public hearing and within the 24-hour time period that was discussed



previously has now been repealed. He reminded Council that comments were made on
the public hearing so he would be reopening the public hearing to consider those
comments as per the statute that was no longer in effect.

Town Attorney Hobbs stated that the Council would be sitting as a quasi-judicial body
for the public hearing, meaning that they will sit as a court and must make its decision
based upon competent material and substantive evidence that will be presented during the
course of the hearing. He stated that anyone wishing to give testimony would have to
give it while under oath with the applicant afforded due process rights including the right
to present evidence, examine, and cross-examine witnesses. He asked that anyone
wishing to testify come forward to be sworn in.

Deputy Town Clerk Nickens proceeded to swear in the applicants and staff for the public
hearing.

The following persons were sworn to provide testimony during the hearing: Joe
Heard and Belinda Pleva.

Town Attorney Hobbs opened the evidentiary portion of the hearing. He stated that
Director of Community Development Joe Heard would give an overview.,

Director of Community Development Joe Heard was recognized to speak. Director
Heard stated that Council had previously voted unanimously to approve the special
exception application at their March 3, 2021, meeting with the caveat that the vote would
not be recorded if additional public comment was received within the 24-hour period. He
stated that within 24 hours following the initial public hearing, business and property
owner Phil Morgan with Seagreen Gallery submitted written comments to the Town
concerning the special exception application. He added that after reviewing the situation,
Town Attorney Hobbs advised that Mr. Morgan’s comments be presented and considered
in a public hearing and that Mr. Morgan and others had the right to present additional
information, ask questions, and provide responses, which effectively meant requiring a
second public hearing before Council could make a final decision on the application.

Director Heard stated that the comments that were originally scheduled to be considered
by Council at their April 7, 2021, meeting during a second public hearing, but during the
week prior, the Town received written requests from both the applicant and Mr. Morgan
to defer Council’s consideration of Mr. Morgan’s written comments until Council’s
September 1, 2021, meeting. He noted that Council granted the request to defer
consideration of the written comments.

Director Heard stated that in response to a staff inquiry on the status of the situation, the
applicant sent an email on August 13, 2021, outlining how she had addressed several of
the concerns expressed by other business and property owners in the shopping center. He
stated that Mr. Morgan emailed staff to let them know that the issues he originally had
were resolved and that he did not wish to stand in the way of the application.



Director Heard explained that after reviewing the recent written comments from the
applicant and Phil Morgan, Town Attorney Hobbs advised that the applicant and the
person who made the post-hearing comments must be offered the opportunity to provide
additional sworn testimony during the public hearing. He noted that, absent any new
sworn testimony offered at this public hearing, Council will have no choice but to ratify
the prior action it took to approve the special exception application, since they could only
base their decision on sworn testimony or evidence otherwise presented under oath
during the hearing.

Mayor Pro Tempore Thibodeau clarified that Town Attorney Hobbs would elaborate on
the two paths. Director Heard stated that Town Attorney Hobbs may want to since he
was the one that was trained in giving legal advice. Mayor Pro Tempore Thibodeau
stated that she would be in favor of more elaboration.

Town Attorney Hobbs explained that Council made a previous decision on the
application which was to approve it. He stated that Council’s decisions in this type of
hearing must be based on sworn testimony and evidence presented under oath during the
hearing. He noted that the 24-hour rule that used to be in effect allowed for public
comments to be made within 24 hours after the hearing. He added that there were
comments made but they were unsworn statements, which were comments that were not
placed before Council under oath during the hearing, meaning that they were presented as
wrilten, unsworn comments after the public hearing. He stated that the idea of having the
hearing at this meeting was to allow any person, whether a Town staff member or anyone
else, to make sworn statements or have an opportunity to make sworn statements as well
as presenting evidence to Council during this hearing. He stated that if there were no
further sworn statements made, then Council did not have much of a choice other than to
ratify and continue with the previous decision, adding that if Council made a contrary
decision, it could be perceived that that decision was made under unsworn testimony or
evidence, but on something else, which Council was not permitted to do.

Town Attorney Hobbs pointed out that the public hearing was not over, and someone
may come up and be sworn in in order to give testimony, but if that does not happen,
then he thought it would be appropriate for Council to ratify the previous action taken
which was to approve the special exception application.

Mayor Pro Tempore Thibodeau clarified that the motion would need to be that Council
would be ratifying the prior decision made. Town Attorney Hobbs stated she was
correct. He noted that Council was now determining if they wanted to consider the
comments that were made within the 24-hour period. He suggested that Council look at
whether those comments would affect the decision that was made at the previous
meeting. He added that if there was no further sworn testimony or evidence at this
meeting, then there was nothing further for Council to consider that wasn’t already
considered at the previous public hearing.

Councilor Whitman noted that one of the tenants had stated that if the property was sold,
the new owners would need to meet with the board and obtain an annual approval for the



space. He asked if Council approved the application, it would go to the owner’s deed.
Town Attorney Hobbs clarified that the yearly approval was with the association.
Councilor Whitman stated he was correct. Town Attorney Hobbs explained that what
happens between the owner and the association was irrelevant. Councilor Whitman
asked if Council approved the application, it would go onto their deed. Town Attorney
Hobbs stated that Council already approved it, adding that the email that Councilor
Whitman was referencing was considered unsworn evidence.

Director Heard explained that it would not be attached to a deed and did not change
anything. He stated that the association and the decisions they made were separate from
the Town’s. He added that Council would be deciding whether or not to allow the use
and whether there were other factors that would need to be considered with their
association was not a decision for the Town. Councilor Whitman asked if the property
was sold, the new owners would have to come back to Council. Director Heard
explained that Council was granting the applicant a right to use the property that carries
with the land and does not change with a change in ownership.

Mayor Kingston clarified that the special exception only applied to Golden Sand
Holdings. Director Heard stated that technically it applied to the property as a whole,
which was why Council looked at the total amount of parking on the site and the total
amount of parking that was required on the site. He noted that it was not tied to an
individual business.

Town Attorney Hobbs asked the applicant to make a presentation.

Belinda Pleva of Golden Sand Holdings, LL.C was recognized to speak. Ms. Pleva stated
she did not have anything to add.

Town Attorney Hobbs asked if there were other presentations by the applicant or the
applicant’s representatives. There were none.,

Town Attorney Hobbs asked if the applicant had any further evidence to present. There
was none.

Town Attorney Hobbs asked if any sworn witnesses wished to address the application.
There were none. He asked if Council had any remaining questions. There were none.
There being no one else wishing to speak, Town Attorney Hobbs closed the evidentiary
portion of the public hearing and turned the meeting back over to Mayor Kingston.

Councilor Mooney moved to ratify the decision Council made previously.
Mayor Pro Tempore Thibodeau thought it was an unusual circumstance, but Council had
the facts laid out with nothing changing. She thought Council had an indication that all

parties have worked things out. She stated that she was in favor of the application.

Motion carried 5-0.



Public Hearing/Discussion/Consideration of Ordinance 21-04, an Ordinance of the

Town Council of the Town of Duck, North Carolina, Updating Requirements to

Enact State of Emergency Proclamations and Actions Consistent with NCGS
Chapter 166A

Mayor Kingston turned the meeting over to Town Attorney Hobbs.
Town Attorney Hobbs stated that Director Heard would give an overview.

Director Heard stated that Town Attorney Hobbs recently advised the Town to update its
standards for emergency proclamations to remain consistent with recent changes to the
State statutes in 2019 and 2020. He stated that the ordinance would amend Chapter 32 of
the Duck Town Code for consistency with the enabling legislation found in NC General
Statute 166A-19.31. He noted that the proposed amendments did not substantially alter
the intent or authority of the Mayor and the Town to enact emergency proclamations
when situations arise but were solely intended to update the Town’s standards to be
consistent with State law.

Town Attorney Hobbs asked if there were any questions from members of Council.

Mayor Pro Tempore Thibodeau stated that everything looked very straightforward and
easy to understand,

Town Attorney Hobbs asked if anyone from the audience wished to address the proposed
ordinance. There were none.

There being no one else wishing to speak, Town Attorney Hobbs closed the public
hearing and turned the meeting back over to Mayor Kingston. He reminded Council that
it will require at least four votes to approve the ordinance on the first read.

Mayor Pro Tempore Thibodeau moved to approve Ordinance 21-04 as presented.

Motion carried 5-0.

OLD BUSINESS/ITEMS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS

There was no QOld Business to discuss.

NEW BUSINESS

Discussion/Consideration of Resolution 21-09, a Resolution of the Town Council of
the Town of Duck, North Carolina, for Financing the 2022 Beach Renourishment

Project

Town Manager Havens stated that the Town’s financial advisor — DEC Associates — has
been working with Parker-Poe, which was the Town’s bond counsel to draft an initial



resolution directing an application to the Local Government Commission requesting
approval of the Town’s application to issue Special Obligation Bonds in order to finance
the Town’s 2022 beach renourishment project. He explained that this action will keep
the Town on track to receive Local Government Commission approval on October 5,
2021, and after that, Council will be asked to adopt two separate financing resolutions
and bond orders — one for the regular five-year Special Obligation Bond and the other for
the short-term Special Obligation Bond — which will be issued in anticipation of FEMA
reimbursement. He added that the Town should be able to close financing in mid-
October.

Mayor Pro Tempore Thibodeau asked if the Town needed to have the bids and the
resolution to submit to the Local Government Commission or just the resolution. Town
Manager Havens stated that, initially, only the resolution was needed.

Mayor Kingston asked if the Town was working with Scott Leo of Parker-Poe. Town
Manager Havens stated he was correct.

Mayor Pro Tempore Thibodeau moved approve Resolution 21-09 as presented.
Motion carried 5-0.

Discussion/Consideration of a Resolution 21-10, a Resolution of the Town Council of
the Town of Duck, North Carolina, Authorizing and Supporting Submission of a
Community Conservation Assistance Program_Grant for the Town of Duck Living

Shoreline Project

Director Heard stated that the marsh grass planting associated with the living shoreline
project was eligible for funding under the Community Conservation Assistance Program.
He explained that the Community Conservation Assistance Program grant has a
maximum award of $20,000, which could be less if other projects were funded; however,
any funding obtained from the grant would reduce the amount of funding paid by the
Town for the project. He noted that the Town previously received a grant from the
Community Conservation Assistance Program to help with funding the construction of
the Town park rain garden/stormwater wetland in the Town park

Councilor Caviness moved to approve Resolution 21-10 as presented.

Motion carried 5-0.

Discussion/Consideration of Approving Funding for the Design and Installation of
the Duck Rain Garden/Stormwater Wetland Interpretive Signage

Braden Heard of Boy Scout Troop 165 was recognized to speak. Mr. Heard gave a short
presentation on his Eagle Scout project where he will be working with the Town and
Dare County Soil & Water Conservation District to design and install educational signage
at the rain garden/stormwater wetland in the Town park to Council and the audience.



Mayor Pro Tempore Thibodeau asked Braden Heard if he had designed the sign. Braden
Heard stated that he did, adding that he would be working with the Town on designing
the sign and checking to make sure it has all of the facts and information about the rain
garden.

Mayor Kingston asked if the sign would have any sort of protection. Braden Heard
thought it would be printed on a plastic composite material.

Councilor Whitman moved to approve providing the remaining costs of the sign
construction as presented.

Motion carried 5-0.

ITEMS REFERRED TO AND PRESENTATIONS FROM THE TOWN
ATTORNEY

Town Attorney Hobbs stated that he had previously sent Council an email with a copy of
a draft easement. He explained that he was contacted by the Town of Southern Shores
because they were also completing a beach nourishment project. He noted that their
project design initially was to stop at the common boundary line between the Towns of
Southern Shores and Duck, but now the design has extended slightly into Duck for the
taper area.

Town Attorney Hobbs stated that he discussed this with the Town Manager of the Town
of Southern Shores and thought one way to approach the issue would be to have the
Town of Southern Shores solicit easements from the property owners in Duck that were
in the taper area, adding that an easement would be obtained from those property owners
that would benefit from the Towns of Southern Shores and Duck, with the idea that
initially the beneficiary would be the Town of Southern Shores, but at some point in the
future the easement could be utilized by the Town of Duck if the Town designed a project
that included these areas.

Town Attorney Hobbs stated that the draft in front of Council has added language to
explain the purpose and why there were two grantees on the deed. He asked that Council
approve the easement form and authorize the Town to accept easements in conjunction
with the Town of Southern Shores for the taper area as well as authorizing the Town
Attorney and Town Manager to negotiate any changes to the easement wording that a
property owner may request.

Mayor Kingston asked if there would be a cost to the Town of Southern Shores. Town
Attorney Hobbs stated that he hasn’t run that by the Town Manager of Southern Shores,
but he was confident that it would be within the Town of Southern Shores’ expenditures
because it was their project. He noted that it was coming before Council because Duck
was a named grantee but he would be working with the Town of Southern Shores to
procure the easements at their cost.

10



Mayor Kingston asked how far into Duck the taper would go. Town Attorney Hobbs
stated that he did not have the exact information as he was not provided with the
properties but when he is provided with them, his firm would prepare all the easements.

Mayor Pro Tempore Thibodeau moved to approve the easement form as presented to
authorize the acceptance by the Town of easements from property owners under the form
and to authorize the Town Attorney and Town Manager to approve and negotiate changes
to the easement form as may be requested by property owners.

Motion carried 5-0.

ITEMS REFERRED TO AND PRESENTATIONS FROM THE TOWN
MANAGER

Departmental Updates

Fire Chief Black gave a brief overview of the past month’s fire activities to Council and
the audience.

Police Lieutenant Melissa Clark was recognized to speak. Police Lieutenant Clark gave a
brief overview of the past month’s police activities to Council and the audience.

Director Heard gave an overview of the past month’s permit activities to Council and the
audience.

Director Legner gave a brief overview of activities to Council and the audience.

August FY 2022 Financial Presentation

Town Manager Havens gave a short presentation on the August Fiscal Year 2022
financials to Council and the audience.

MAYOR’S AGENDA

Mayor Kingston stated that he will be attending the mayor/chairman monthly meeting on
September 2, 2021. He stated that the COVID-19 numbers continue to escalate, and the
last four weeks of cases have been in the 200°s with 259 cases just from the week before.
He stated that he did not know what the discussion will be for September 2, 2021 with
Dare County and other mayors, but as of August 31, 2021, Governor Roy Cooper
extended his declaration of emergency for an additional 90 days. He noted that Dare
County and the Town of Duck have followed suit, extending it through November 29,
2021. He stated that if there was anything substantial that comes out of the September 2,
2021, meeting, he would correspond with Council regarding it.

11



Mayor Kingston stated that he has his League of Municipalities Board meeting on
September 16-17, 2021, via Zoom. He stated that he has his League of Municipalities
Finance Committee meeting on September 13, 2021, and the Executive Committee
meeting on September 6, 2021. He stated that the NC Local Leadership Forum will have
a special meeting on September 7, 2021,

Mayor Kingston stated that he was looking forward to the candidate orientation on
September 30, 2021 that Town Manager Havens will be hosting. He thought it would be
good for the current Council as well as the candidates running for office. He added that
he was looking forward to the League of Women Voters Candidate Forum on October 4,
2021, via Zoom.

Mayor Kingston stated that he was disappointed that the Jazz Festival was canceled for
this year but understood why. He hoped that there would be a 4™ of July parade and Jazz
Festival in 2022.

Mayor Kingston stated that Council has received a lot of public input recently regarding
the Town’s trash services. He stated that he has responded to individuals, adding that he
looked forward to having more discussion on the issue at Council’s October 6, 2021,
meeting.

COUNCIL MEMBER'’S AGENDA

Mayor Pro Tempore Thibodeau stated that she appreciated all of the input received
regarding the Town’s trash service. She stated that she looked forward to the discussion
at Council’s October 6, 2021, meeting. She stated that she received a comment from an
individual that was upset that the Jazz Festival had been canceled. She added that,
looking ahead to 2022, the Town may be in the same position with masks and
vaccinations. She stated that the individual had suggested coming up with a plan to
require everyone attending be vaccinated as well as restricting access in some way. She
thought it was hard to fathom based on how fluid everyone was with moving around.
She added that it was disappointing to cancel the festival and if the Town was faced with
COVID-19 lasting another year, it could be that the Town could come up with something.
She pointed out that she was not trying to put more work on Town staff, but thought it
was something to think about.

Mayor Pro Tempore Thibodeau stated that she was excited about the VHB study as it
was more detailed than she had envisioned. She thanked VHB, Town staff and the
volunteers that worked on the traffic study and thought the community at large will be
interested in the results of the study. She thought traffic cameras could be installed in
Duck as a public service to capture photographs or be live streamed. She noted that the
Town was very lucky to have such an efficient staff.

Councilor Mooney suggested that everyone think very hard about the trash schedule and
the upcoming discussion on it.

12



Councilor Whitman had nothing to report.

Councilor Caviness stated that Council was copied on a number of emails about the HOA
Forum representation. She pointed out that since Council’s last meeting, they have
received a fair number of emails and she had suggested that it was a topic for the Retreat.
She added that one of the concerns she had was that it was going to cause some
divisiveness, which is what Council was currently secing, between citizens and
subdivisions. She stated that she was suggesting getting to the bottom of what was not
working with all of the opportunities in place for people to participate as well as how
Council can improve things.

Mayor Kingston pointed out that there were NCDOT cameras that work but didn’t think
it was a bad idea to tie them into the Town’s website if it was possible to do.

OTHER BUSINESS

Additional Public Comments

Mayor Kingston opened the floor for public comments. There being no one wishing to
comment, Mayor Kingston closed the time for public comments.

Mayor Kingston noted that the next meeting would be the Regular Meeting on
Wednesday, October 6, 2021, at 6:00 p.m.

ADJOURNMENT
Councilor Caviness moved to adjourn the meeting.

Motion carried 5-0.

The time was 8:22 p.m.

13



